
 

Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.us 
 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 
 

 

Notice and Agenda of a Meeting  
of the Board of Directors 

Tuesday, November 18, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any item 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board; however, no action may be taken on an item not on the 
agenda unless authorized by law.  Comments shall be limited to matters not listed on the agenda up to a 
maximum of three (3) minutes.   

V. CONSENT CALENDAR - All consent calendar matters are routine and will be acted upon in one motion.  
There will be no discussion of these matters unless a board member or administrative staff member requests 
an item to be removed prior to the vote by the Board of Directors.   

A. Board Meeting Minutes - October 21, 2025 

B. Board of Directors Meeting Attendance Summary - October 2025 

VI. GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 

VII. STAFF REPORT 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

A. Receipt of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending on June 30, 2025 
[Director Memorandum No. 25-209 - Page 22 of 179] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board receive and file the audited financial 
statements. 

B. Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on October 31, 2025 
[Director Memorandum No. 25-210 - Page 103 of 179] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board receive and file the unaudited financial 
report. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 1 of 179 

http://www.yvwd.us/


 

 
Page 2 

C. Consideration of the Installation of Four Variable Frequency Drive Controllers and 
Associated Electrical Upgrades at Lift Station No. 1 [Director Memorandum No. 25-211 - 
Page 131 of 179] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board: (1) authorize the General Manager to 
purchase four replacement variable frequency drives and associated pump wiring 
for a total cost not to exceed $88,368; and (2) adopt Resolution No. 2025-73 
transferring reserve funds to cover the cost of this purchase. 

D. Consideration of Professional Support Services from Dudek for Assistance with the Basin 
Monitoring Task Force [Director Memorandum No. 25-212 - Page 135 of 179] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
continue the professional services agreement with Dudek for a sum not to exceed 
$17,920. 

E. Consideration of an Engineering Contract for the Preparation of Digester Cleaning 
Specifications at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility [Director Memorandum 
No. 25-213 - Page 143 of 179] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board authorize the General Manager to issue 
a contract with Woodard & Curan for an amount not to exceed $34,810. 

F. Notice of Completion of the Chagall Road Pipeline Project [Director Memorandum No. 25-
214 - Page 148 of 179] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board: (1) authorize the General Manager to 
execute and file the Notice of Completion for the pipeline project on Chagall Road, 
Martell Avenue, and Lan Franc Road; and (2) adopt Resolution No. 2025-72 
returning $37,364 to the Infrastructure Reserves fund as a result of project savings.   

G. Status Update for the Aquifer Storage and Recovery Phase 1 Project [Director 
Memorandum No. 25-215 - Page 152 of 179] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff presentation, no action required. 

H. Status Update for the Salinity Concentration Reduction and Minimization (SCRAM) Project 
[Director Memorandum No. 25-216 - Page 157 of 179] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff presentation, no action required. 

I. Status Update of the R-16.2 Reservoir and Booster Pumping Project [Director 
Memorandum No. 25-217 - Page 161 of 179] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff presentation, no action required. 

J. Authorization to Assess and Complete the Rehabilitation of Drinking Water Well No. 48 
Located on Singleton Road, Calimesa [Director Memorandum No. 25-218 - Page 167 of 
179] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
contract with Layne for the assessment and rehabilitation of Well No. 48 with the 
final cost and fund transfer to be presented for ratification at a future meeting. 

IX. BOARD REPORTS & DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

X. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. December 2, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

B. December 16, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

C. January 6, 2026 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting - Cancelled 

D. January 20, 2026 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

E. February 3, 2026 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 2 of 179 



 

Consent Calendar 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 3 of 179 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1 of 7 

MINUTES OF A BOARD MEETING 
 

October 21, 2025 at 4:00 pm 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District was called to order by Director Nyles 
O’Harra at 4:00 p.m. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE The meeting attendees participated in the pledge of 
allegiance.  
 

ROLL CALL Director Jay Bogh, Director Nyles O’Harra, Director Greg 
Bogh, Director Brett Granlund, and Director Joyce 
McIntire were present.   
 

Director’s Present: Staff Present: 
 Jay Bogh, President  

Nyles O’Harra, Vice President 
Greg Bogh, Treasurer 
Joyce McIntire, Secretary 
Brett Granlund, Director 

Wade Allsup, Chief Information Officer 
Jennifer Ares, Resource Manager 
Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Ashley Gibson, Regulatory Compliance Manager 
Dustin Hochreiter, Public Works Supervisor 
Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 
Maya Lopez, Senior Engineering Technician 
Matthew Porras, Director of Engineering 
Mia Preciado, Senior Engineering Technician 
Mike Rivera, Public Works Manager 
Charles Thomas, Operations Manager 
Ryan Walton, Accountant 
John Wrobel, Public Works Manager 
Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

 
Directors Absent:  Consulting Staff Present: 
 None 

 
Jeremy Jungreis, Rutan & Tucker 
 

 
Registered Guests and Others Present: 
 David Duron, Customer 

Mike Esquer, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
Phil Goodrich, East Valley Water District 
Paul Kielhold, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
Mike Plinski, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
Doug Williams, Customer 
Judy Woolsey, City of Yucaipa 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 4 of 179 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 2 of 7 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

David Duron commended Director of Engineering Matthew 
Porras for his time, effort, and professionalism in 
responding to questions about District facilities. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR Director Brett Granlund moved that the Board of Directors 
add Item C to the consent calendar, authorizing the 
General Manager to send a letter of endorsement for Ron 
Coats of East Valley Water District to the California 
Special Districts Association for Southern Network, Seat 
C. 
 
Director Nyles O’Harra seconded the motion to add the 
item to the meeting agenda. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 

 

The Consent Calendar consisted of the following: 

A. Board Meeting Minutes - October 7, 2025 

B. Board of Directors Meeting Attendance Summary 
- September 2025 

C. Letter of Endorsement for Ron Coats to the CSDA 
Board of Directors for the Southern Network, Seat 
C. 

 
The motion to approve the Consent Calendar was made 
by Director Brett Granlund seconded by Director Greg 
Bogh, and approved by the following vote: 

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 

 

GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 
 

None 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

General Manager Joseph Zoba explained that this time of 
year marks the winter Public Safety Power Shutoff 
(PSPS) season.  Data shows that the summer PSPS 
season is typically in July and August with the winter 
PSPS season in December and January.  These four 
months represent the highest occurrence of PSPS events 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 5 of 179 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 3 of 7 

in the Inland Empire.  The District staff looks for these 
data trends so we can prepare accordingly for potential 
PSPS events. 
 
General Manager Joseph Zoba and Operations Manager 
Mike Kostelecky presented information about the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District’s decision to 
pause State Water Project (SWP) deliveries during the 
Christmas and New Year’s holidays - creating two 36-
hour outages.  To continue meeting water demands 
during the holidays, the District must switch from using 
imported SWP water to relying on groundwater wells 
during the outage, reversing standard system operations.  
This transition requires careful planning to protect 
filtration membranes at the treatment plant - membranes 
must stay wet to prevent expensive damage, and this 
filter pickling will cost tens of thousands of dollars or even 
more if replacement membranes are needed.  The District 
continues to explore creative, cost-effective, and 
collaborative ways to maintain reliability with solution-
based planning and no service interruptions for our 
customers. 
 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: 
 

DM 25-204 
 
PRESENTATION OF THE 
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL 
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 
ENDING ON SEPTEMBER 30, 
2025  

Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten presented the 
unaudited financial report for the period ending 
September 30, 2025, highlighting operational revenues at 
approximately 27% and expenditures progressing as 
expected near the 25% mark through one-quarter of the 
budget cycle.  The month’s significant disbursements 
were largely tied to WIFIA project activities, including 
payments to Borden for SCRAM, Lane Christensen for 
ASR wells, and Krieger & Stewart for ongoing project 
management, as well as the acquisition of a CAT315 
excavator and several paving projects.   
 
Director Nyles O’Harra moved that the Board of Directors 
receive and file the unaudited financial report.  
 
Director Joyce McIntire seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 6 of 179 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 4 of 7 

 

DM 25-205 
 
CONSIDERATION OF THE 
PROPOSED WORKERS’ 
COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
POLICY RENEWAL FOR 2025-
26  

Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten discussed the 
renewal of the workers' compensation insurance policy for 
2025-26 with the State Compensation Insurance Fund.  
This renewal reflects a significant improvement, with the 
District’s experience modification factor dropping from 
151% to 109%, primarily due to previous high-claim years 
phasing out and sustained improvements in safety 
practices.  District payroll increased by 19% compared to 
last year, which slightly offset the premium reduction, yet 
overall, there was still a notable decrease of over $50,000 
from the prior year.  The improved experience mod and 
favorable premium reduction are the result of robust 
monthly safety meetings, proactive committee reviews of 
incidents, and strong carrier feedback asserting the 
District is implementing best practices.  Five insurance 
carriers responded to the District’s solicitation, with State 
Fund offering the most competitive rate - representing a 
$56,629, or 15%, decrease compared to 2024 premiums.   
 
Director Brett Granlund moved that the Board of Directors 
authorize the General Manager to execute contracts with 
State Compensation Insurance Fund for workers’ 
compensation insurance for October 31, 2025 through 
October 31, 2026 for an estimated amount of 
$319,139.65. 
 
Director Nyles O’Harra seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 

 

DM 25-206 
 
STATUS UPDATE FOR THE 
SALINITY AND 
GROUNDWATER 
ENHANCEMENT PROJECT AT 
THE WOCHHOLZ REGIONAL 
WATER RECYCLING FACILITY  

Director of Engineering Matthew Porras presented 
information about the Salinity and Groundwater 
Enhancement (SAGE) Project at the Henry N. Wochholz 
Regional Water Recycling Facility in Yucaipa as it 
continues to progress on schedule and on budget.  The 
SAGE Project, funded by WIFIA and other sources, will 
add a full advanced treatment building for desalination 
and production of ultra-pure recycled water, supporting 
the District’s groundwater recharge and compliance with 
state regulations.  Recent work has centered on 
foundation improvements vital for settlement control 
beneath the new facility, notably through a deep soil 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 7 of 179 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 5 of 7 

mixing (DSM) process that uses specialized equipment to 
inject grout and stabilize the building site.  Field activities 
have included precise site grading, erection of an onsite 
batch plant, and testing of different soil-cement mix 
designs.  Overall, the SAGE project represents a key 
component of the District’s broader water infrastructure 
initiative to develop reliable, high-quality water resources 
through integrated treatment and storage solutions. 
 
No action is required from the Board at this time, as this 
report is for informational purposes only.  The District staff 
will continue to keep the Board apprised of progress with 
progress reports at future board meetings. 
 

DM 25-207 
 
STATUS UPDATE OF THE 
INSTALLATION OF GAS LINE 
EXTENSION AND SOUTHERN 
CALIFORNIA EDISON CIVIL 
UPGRADES AT YUCAIPA 
VALLEY REGIONAL WATER 
FILTRATION FACILITY  

Director of Engineering Matthew Porras presented 
information about the gas line extension and electrical 
work at the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration 
Facility, which is approaching the final stages, with all 
major installations, including electrical conduits, vaults, 
and the 4-inch HDPE gas line, now in place and ready for 
final inspection and backfill.  This integrated energy 
project, supported by WIFIA funding, is central to the 
District’s ongoing efforts to enhance energy resiliency and 
reduce operational costs by incorporating alternative 
power supplies such as solar arrays, battery storage, and 
natural gas generators.  The team is targeting operational 
readiness by year-end with all construction activities 
ready for immediate closure upon approval.  This 
milestone will mark the final element of a multi-year, multi-
phase upgrade to fully integrate microgrid capabilities at 
the drinking water filtration facility. 
 
No action is required from the Board at this time, as this 
report is for informational purposes only.  The District staff 
will continue to keep the Board apprised of progress with 
progress reports at future board meetings. 
 

DM 25-208 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-71 
AUTHORIZING THE 
PURCHASE OF PROPERTY AT 
37995 LETA DRIVE, CALIMESA 
(APN 407-280-012) 

Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten presented 
Resolution No. 2025-71, which authorizes the purchase 
of 14.45 acres of property located at 37995 Leta Drive in 
Calimesa for $495,000.  This acquisition is important 
because the District already has two water tanks situated 
on the property, currently accessed through an easement, 
and purchasing the land will secure operational access 
while enabling future expansion of tank facilities.   
 
Director Joyce McIntire moved the Board: (1) authorize 
the Chief Financial Officer to execute the necessary 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 8 of 179 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 6 of 7 

agreements and escrow documents to complete the 
property transaction for a sum not to exceed $495,000; 
and (2) adopt Resolution No. 2025-71.    
 
Director Nyles O’Harra seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Greg Bogh - Yes 
Director Brett Granlund - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 
Director Jay Bogh - Yes 

 

BOARD REPORTS AND 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
 

Director Nyles O’Harra reported on the Beaumont Cherry 
Valley Water District meeting held on October 8, 2025. 
 
Director Nyles O’Harra reported on the City of Calimesa 
Planning Commission meeting held on October 13, 2025. 
 
Director Brett Granlund, Director Joyce McIntire, and 
Director Nyles O’Harra reported on the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency Groundbreaking Ceremony held on October 
14, 2025. 
 
Director Nyles O’Harra reported on the City of Calimesa 
council meeting held on October 20, 2025. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire reported on the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency board meeting held on October 20, 
2025. 
 
Director Brett Granlund reported on an operational 
discussion with Paul Kielhold from the San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District on October 20, 2025. 
 
Director Brett Granlund reported on the South Mountain 
Water Company meeting held on October 21, 2025. 
 
Director Brett Granlund reported on the San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District board meeting held on 
October 21, 2025. 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS Director Jay Bogh called attention to the announcements 
listed on the agenda. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

None 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 9 of 179 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 7 of 7 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting was adjourned by Director Jay Bogh at 4:45 
p.m.   
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      
              Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary       (Seal) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 10 of 179 



Yucaipa Valley Water District
Meeting Attendance and Reimbursement Summary - Board of Directors
October 2025

Meeting Date Meeting or Event
Director 

Greg Bogh
Director 
Jay Bogh

Director 
Brett Granlund

Director
Joyce McIntire

Director 
Nyles O'Harra

October 1, 2025 Beaumont Basin Watermaster - - - - $265.32 $265.32 - -
October 3, 2025 Riverside County Water Task Force - - - - - - $132.66 - -
October 6, 2025 City of Yucaipa - City Council Special Meeting - - - - $0.00 - - - -
October 6, 2025 City of Calimesa - City Council Meeting - - - - - - - - $132.66
October 6, 2025 SGPWA Board Meeting - - - - - - $265.32 - -
October 7, 2025 YVWD Board Meeting $265.32 - - $265.32 $265.32 $265.32
October 8, 2025 BCVWD Board Meeting - - - - - - - - $132.66

October 13, 2025 Calimesa Planning Commission - - - - - - - - $132.66
October 14, 2025 SGPWA County Line Recharge Project Groundbreaking - - - - $265.32 $265.32 $265.32
October 20, 2025 SGPWA Board Meeting - - - - - - $132.66 - -
October 20, 2025 Calimesa City Council Meeting - - - - - - - - $132.66
October 21, 2025 YVWD Board Meeting $265.32 $265.32 $265.32 $265.32 $265.32
October 21, 2025 South Mesa Water Company Board Meeting - - - - $0.00 - - - -
October 22, 2025 SGMA - City of Yucaipa - - - - $265.32 $265.32 $265.32
October 27, 2025 City of Yucaipa - City Council Meeting - - - - - - - - $132.66
October 29, 2025 BCVWD Engineering Workshop - - - - - - - - $132.66

- - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Total Payment $530.64 $265.32 $1,326.60 $1,857.24 $1,857.24 

Date Other Expenses Reimbursed

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 11 of 179 



 

 

General Counsel Report 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 12 of 179 



 

Staff Report 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 13 of 179 



Senate Bill No. 827 (2025) 
Lena Gonzalez 

 
California Senate Bill No. 827 updates and expands ethics and fiscal training 
requirements for local agency officials.  Under existing law, specified local agency 
officials must complete two hours of ethics training every two years, with initial training 
within one year of commencing service, and agencies are required to maintain records 
of this training.  SB 827 broadens the scope to include department heads and other 
similar administrative officers, and it shortens the deadline for initial ethics training to 
within six months for those beginning service on or after January 1, 2026.  The bill also 
mandates that agencies post clear instructions and contact information on their 
websites for requesting training records. 
 
In addition, SB 827 requires all covered local agency officials to receive at least two 
hours of fiscal and financial training every two years.  This training covers a range of 
topics such as fiscal administration, budgeting, financial reporting, and the ethical 
management of public resources.  The legislation explicitly states that its provisions 
address a matter of statewide concern, making them applicable to all cities, including 
charter cities and special districts.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 14 of 179 



 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 15 of 179 



 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 16 of 179 



 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 17 of 179 



 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 18 of 179 



 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 19 of 179 



 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 20 of 179 



 

Discussion Items 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 21 of 179 



 

 

 

Director Memorandum 25-209 

Date: November 18, 2025 Task: N/A 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Receipt of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending on 
June 30, 2025 

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the audited financial statements. 

 
The certified public accounting firm of Davis Farr, LLP has completed the financial audit for the 
fiscal year ending on June 30 ,2025. 
 
A representative from Davis Farr, LLP will attend the board meeting to provide an overview of the 
audited financial documents and answer questions about the report.   
 

 

$0

$50,000,000

$100,000,000

$150,000,000

$200,000,000

$250,000,000

6
/3

0
/1

9
9

5

6
/3

0
/1

9
9

6

6
/3

0
/1

9
9

7

6
/3

0
/1

9
9

8

6
/3

0
/1

9
9

9

6
/3

0
/2

0
0

0

6
/3

0
/2

0
0

1

6
/3

0
/2

0
0

2

6
/3

0
/2

0
0

3

6
/3

0
/2

0
0

4

6
/3

0
/2

0
0

5

6
/3

0
/2

0
0

6

6
/3

0
/2

0
0

7

6
/3

0
/2

0
0

8

6
/3

0
/2

0
0

9

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

0

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

1

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

2

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

3

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

4

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

5

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

6

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

7

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

9

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

0

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

1

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

2

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

3

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

4

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

5

Total Assets by  District Enterprise

Water Assets

Sewer Assets

Recyled Water Assets

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 22 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 2 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 23 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 3 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 24 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 4 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 25 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 5 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 26 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 6 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 27 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 7 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 28 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 8 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 29 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 9 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 30 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 10 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 31 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 11 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 32 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 12 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 33 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 13 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 34 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 14 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 35 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 15 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 36 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 16 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 37 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 17 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 38 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 18 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 39 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 19 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 40 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 20 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 41 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 21 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 42 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 22 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 43 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 23 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 44 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 24 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 45 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 25 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 46 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 26 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 47 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 27 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 48 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 28 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 49 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 29 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 50 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 30 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 51 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 31 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 52 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 32 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 53 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 33 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 54 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 34 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 55 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 35 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 56 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 36 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 57 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 37 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 58 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 38 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 59 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 39 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 60 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 40 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 61 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 41 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 62 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 42 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 63 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 43 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 64 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 44 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 65 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 45 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 66 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 46 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 67 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 47 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 68 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 48 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 69 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 49 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 70 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 50 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 71 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 51 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 72 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 52 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 73 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 53 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 74 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 54 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 75 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 55 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 76 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 56 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 77 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 57 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 78 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 58 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 79 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 59 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 80 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 60 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 81 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 61 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 82 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 62 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 83 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 63 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 84 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 64 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 85 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 65 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 86 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 66 of 81 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 87 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 67 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 88 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 68 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 89 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 69 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 90 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 70 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 91 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 71 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 92 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 72 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 93 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 73 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 94 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 74 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 95 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 75 of 81 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 96 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 76 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 97 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 77 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 98 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 78 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 99 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 79 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 100 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 80 of 81 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 101 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-209  Page 81 of 81 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 102 of 179 



 

Director Memorandum 25-210 

Date: November 18, 2025 Task: N/A 

Prepared By: Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on 
October 31, 2025 

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the unaudited financial report. 

 
The following unaudited financial report has been prepared by the Administrative Department for 
your review. Please remember that the following financial information has not been audited. 
 

Cash Fund Balance and Cash Flow Reports 
 

The Cash Fund Balance Report provides a summary of how the total amount of funds maintained 
by financial institutions is distributed throughout the enterprise and non-enterprise funds of the 
District. A summary of the report is as follows: 

 

Most of the funds reflected in the Cash Fund Balance Report are designated for specific purposes 
and are therefore restricted, either by law or by District policy. 
 

($20,000,000)

$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000

$80,000,000

$100,000,000

Se
p

-2
3

O
ct

-2
3

N
o

v-
2

3

D
ec

-2
3

Ja
n

-2
4

Fe
b

-2
4

M
ar

-2
4

A
p

r-
2

4

M
ay

-2
4

Ju
n

-2
4

Ju
l-

2
4

A
u

g-
2

4

Se
p

-2
4

O
ct

-2
4

N
o

v-
2

4

D
ec

-2
4

Ja
n

-2
5

Fe
b

-2
5

M
ar

-2
5

A
p

r-
2

5

M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n

-2
5

Ju
l-

2
5

A
u

g-
2

5

Se
p

-2
5

O
ct

-2
5

Fund Balance

Drinking Water Fund - Operating Drinking Water Fund - Restricted

Sewer Fund - Operating Sewer Fund - Restricted

Recycled Water Fund - Operating Recycled Water Fund - Restricted

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 103 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 2 of 28 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 104 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 3 of 28 

 
The Cash Flow Report provides a list of the debt service payment due dates and amounts as well 
as the cash flow requirements for debt service for each month of the fiscal year.  

 

 

 $-

 $20,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $60,000,000

 $80,000,000

 $100,000,000

 $120,000,000
Cash Position

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 105 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 4 of 28 

Cash Disbursement Report 
 
The cash disbursement report lists each check and electronic payment processed during the 
month. All payments are reviewed by District staff for accuracy and completeness; checks are 
usually signed by the General Manager and one Director but may be signed by two Directors. 
The Chief Financial Officer will make any check, payment, invoice or supporting documentation 
available for review to any board member upon request. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 106 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 5 of 28 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 107 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 6 of 28 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 108 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 7 of 28 

 
Financial Account Information 

The District currently deposits all revenue received via mail or in person into the Deposit Checking 
account. All revenue received through Invoice Cloud is also deposited into the Deposit Checking 
account. The General Checking account is used as a sole processing account for all District 
checks and electronic payroll. The Investment Checking account is used for the purchase and 
redemption of US treasury notes and bills and for the transfer of LAIF funds. The US treasury 
notes and bills are booked at cost. 

 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000
Monthly Utility Revenue

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 109 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 8 of 28 

Monthly Water Shut offs:  Monthly utility bills are mailed near the first of each month. Once utility 

bills are more than 60 days past due, turn off notices are mailed out, and the District shuts off 

water for non-payment once a month. 

 

 
Compared to 10,384 in September (0.7% increase) and 7,278 customers on Xpress Bill Pay.  

 
Compared to 11,051 in September (0.5% increase) and 2,455 customers on Xpress Bill Pay.  

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

O
ct

-2
3

N
o

v-
2

3

D
ec

-2
3

Ja
n

-2
4

Fe
b

-2
4

M
ar

-2
4

A
p

r-
2

4

M
ay

-2
4

Ju
n

-2
4

Ju
l-

2
4

A
u

g-
2

4

Se
p

-2
4

O
ct

-2
4

N
o

v-
2

4

D
ec

-2
4

Ja
n

-2
5

Fe
b

-2
5

M
ar

-2
5

A
p

r-
2

5

M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n

-2
5

Ju
l-

2
5

A
u

g-
2

5

Se
p

-2
5

O
ct

-2
5

Turn Off Notices vs. Shut Offs

Turn Off Notices Off & Locked

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 110 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 9 of 28 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 111 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 10 of 28 

 
 

30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 

Average Pre-Covid $271,756 $38,313 $20,889 $25,525 

Average Post Covid $437,085 $158,862 $49,053 $247,805 

% increase 60.84% 314.65% 134.82% 870.85% 
 

 

 

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

0

5
/3

0
/2

0
2

0

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

0

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

0

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

1

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
1

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

2

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
2

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

3

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
3

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

4

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
4

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

5

Aging Trends-2020-October 2025 

30 Days 60 Days 90 Days 120 Days

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

$1,800,000

$2,000,000

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

0

5
/3

0
/2

0
2

0

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

0

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

0

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

1

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
1

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

2

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

2

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
2

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

3

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

3

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
3

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

4

1
1

/3
0

/2
0

2
4

1
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

3
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

5
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

5

9
/3

0
/2

0
2

5

Utilty Billing - Aging  Chart

30 Days 60 Days 90 Days 120 Days

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 112 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 11 of 28 

Management Discussion 

This section is included in the monthly unaudited report to discuss items of importance that may 
have a financial impact on the District.  
 

• On February 15, 2023, the District was awarded a WIFIA loan of more than $81.4 million 
to fund eleven water and energy projects throughout the District.  

o District staff finalized the interim financing on June 18th for the short term WIFIA 
notes as well as the financing for the R-16.2 Reservoir. 

o The District has drawn down an estimated 44% for WIFIA projects. 

• District staff is reviewing the future rate revenue for the District. 

• The fiscal year 2025-26 budget was approved by the Board on May 15, 2025.  

• The interim portion of the annual District Financial Audit was completed the week of May 
19th. The onsite portion of the final audit occurred in the week of September 2nd. District 
staff is presenting the audited financial statements at the November 18th Board meeting. 

• District staff has begun working on the annual State Controller Report due in January. 
   

Summary of Property Tax Revenue:   

 

Current Month Year-to-Date Budgeted Amount Percentage 

Property Taxes $                               -      $                5,454,496 0% 

 

 
 

  

$
4

,8
4

7
,3

0
1

 

$
5

,1
4

8
,8

9
3

 

$
-

$
3

,9
8

2
,2

9
6

 

$
4

,9
2

3
,4

4
2

 

$
5

,4
5

4
,4

9
6

 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

 $5,000,000

 $5,500,000

 $6,000,000

 2023-24  2024-25  2025-26

Property Taxes - Actual vs. Budget

Actual Allocation/Budget

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 113 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 12 of 28 

Investment Summary 

 
The investment summary report illustrates the District's investments in US treasury notes and bills 
in addition to the investments held by the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and the California 
Asset Management Program (CAMP). The yields for the treasury notes and bills are provided for 
each individual transaction. The historical annual yield for funds invested with LAIF and CAMP 
are also provided. 
 
Separate pooled money investment reports for LAIF, prepared by the State of California, are 
maintained by the District and available for review. The LAIF investment account is a pooled 
money account administered by the State of California. Additional information on the LAIF account 
is provided below in the investment summary report. 
 
Separate pooled money investment reports for CAMP, prepared by U.S. Bank, are maintained by 
the District and available for review. The CAMP is a California Joint Powers Authority (JPA) 
established in 1989 to provide California public agencies with professional investment services. 
Investments offered through the Cash Reserve Portfolio (or “Pool”) and CAMP Term are permitted 
for all local agencies under California Government Code Section 53601(p). The individually 
managed portfolio is administered by PFM Asset Management LLC. Additional information on the 
CAMP account is provided below in the investment summary report. 
 
Investment Policy Disclosure - The District is currently compliant with the portfolio of its Investment 
Policy and State law. The District expects to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six 
months. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 114 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 13 of 28 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 115 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 14 of 28 

 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 116 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 15 of 28 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 117 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 16 of 28 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 118 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 17 of 28 

 

Fiscal Year 2025-26 Detail Budget Status 

 
The revenue and expense budget status for the 2025-26 Fiscal Year is provided for your review.  

 
Questions or Comments 

 
If you have any questions about a particular budget account, please do not hesitate to contact the 
Chief Financial Officer directly. If you need additional information, the members of the 
Administrative Department would be happy to provide you with any detailed information you may 
desire.  
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 119 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 18 of 28 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 120 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 19 of 28 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 121 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 20 of 28 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 122 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 21 of 28 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 123 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 22 of 28 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 124 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 23 of 28 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 125 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 24 of 28 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 126 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 25 of 28 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 127 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 26 of 28 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 128 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 27 of 28 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 129 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-210 Page 28 of 28 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 130 of 179 



 

Director Memorandum 25-211 

Date: November 18, 2025 Task: 135277 

Prepared By: Ryan Janisch, Public Works Supervisor 

Subject: Consideration of the Installation of Four Variable Frequency Drive 
Controllers and Associated Electrical Upgrades at Lift Station No. 1 

Recommendation: That the Board: (1) authorize the General Manager to purchase four 
replacement variable frequency drives and associated pump wiring for 
a total cost not to exceed $88,368; and (2) adopt Resolution No. 2025-
73 transferring reserve funds to cover the cost of this purchase. 

The District recently completed the replacement of four pumps at Lift Station No. 1 as part of its 
ongoing efforts to enhance infrastructure resiliency and operational efficiency.  With these pumps 
now operational, the next phase involves upgrading the Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs) which 
are essential components that regulate pump motor speeds for optimal performance, and the 
electrical wiring between these drives and the motors.  These upgrades are imperative to 
guarantee long-term reliability, minimize downtime, and align with modern standards for energy 
efficiency and system control. 

Currently, the existing VFDs are aging, with one unit having already failed, necessitating 
immediate replacement.  The remaining drives tend to exhibit indicators of impending failure, 
including erratic performance and component degradation.  Two of these VFDs exceed twenty 
years in service, far surpassing their typical operational lifespan in a demanding environment like 
a wastewater lift station.  Such failures not only disrupt service but also increase the risk of system 
breakdowns, potentially leading to overflows, environmental hazards, and costly emergency 
repairs. 

In addition, the insulation on the existing wiring between the motor junction boxes and the VFDs 
is deteriorating, cracked and flaking, which poses an electrical safety and reliability concern.  This 
project will replace both the aging VFDs and the associated wiring to fully restore facility integrity 
and operational performance.  The new VFDs and wiring will modernize the lift station’s electrical 
system and ensure reliable service for many years to come.  

The District Staff solicited quotes from the following qualified electrical contractors: 

Vendor Unit Price 

Center Electric  $88,368.00 

Metricom $111,618.00 

Titan No Bid 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 131 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-211  Page 2 of 4 

Financial Impact: 
 
This purchase will be paid for by the Sewer Fund, Infrastructure Reserves [G/L Account # 03-000-
10311].  

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 132 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-211  Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 133 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-211  Page 4 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-73 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
TRANSFERRING FUNDS WITHIN THE WATER FUND AS  

TRANSFER NO. 29 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2026 

 
WHEREAS the Yucaipa Valley Water District recognizes the importance of funding projects and 
equipment within the District with funds set aside for this purpose, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has authorized the purchase of four Variable Frequency Drives 
(VFDs) and associated pump wiring with Center Electric, Inc. for a sum not to exceed $88,368 
[Director Memorandum 25-211] and authorized the use of reserve funds for this purchase and adjust 
the budget line items appropriately to accommodate the reserve funds transfer if necessary.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE, and ORDER as follows: 

 
Section 1: Fund Transfer No. 29 in the amount of $88,368.00 from the Sewer Fund 

Infrastructure Reserves (03-000-10311) to fund the purchase of the attachments 
listed above. 
 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 18th day of November 2025. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
  

  
  Jay Bogh, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

 
  

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 134 of 179 



 

Director Memorandum 25-212 

Date: November 18, 2025 Task: 97321 

Prepared By: Ashley Gibson, Regulatory Compliance Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Professional Support Services from Dudek for Assistance 
with the Basin Monitoring Task Force 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to continue the 
professional services agreement with Dudek for a sum not to exceed 
$17,920. 

 
The Basin Monitoring Program Task Force, formed in August 2004 as a successor to the 
Nitrogen/TDS Task Force, consists of twenty water agencies in the Santa Ana River Watershed 
and is administered by the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority to implement the 2004 Basin 
Plan Amendments by the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB).  Its primary 
responsibilities include compiling and collecting monitoring data to annually evaluate water quality 
in Santa Ana River for compliance with surface water and underlying groundwater objectives, as 
well as conducting a watershed-wide TDS/Nitrogen ambient water quality update every five years 
to assess management zones, determine if objectives are met or exceeded, and update 
assimilative capacity findings.  The Task Force also oversees updates to the Santa Ana River 
waste load allocation model, which distributes TDS and total inorganic nitrogen (TIN) shares 
among publicly owned treatment works discharging to the river and its tributaries.  The Task Force 
meets monthly, to produce reports such as annual Santa Ana River water quality reports with 
appendices on data and flow, triennial recomputations of ambient water quality using 20-year 
running averages, and wasteload allocation model reports to support salt management in the 
watershed. 
 
The District staff have recognized a significant benefit by using the Dudek staff to augment District 
resources in participating in the Task Force.  Since Dudek has specific expertise in local 
environmental and hydrogeological issues with knowledge of the region, they are able to 
incorporate watershed based policies and concepts into groundwater management reports 
prepared by the District for a variety of regulatory agencies. 
 
The District staff recommend continuing the funding for Dudek to provide this valuable assistance 
for an amount of $17,920 which should be sufficient to fund their consulting services through 
December 2026 for this effort. 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
This expense will be funded by Sewer Division, Regulatory Compliance, [G/L Account # 03-506-
57030].  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 135 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-212  Page 2 of 8 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 136 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-212  Page 3 of 8 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 137 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-212  Page 4 of 8 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 138 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-212  Page 5 of 8 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 139 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-212  Page 6 of 8 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 140 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-212  Page 7 of 8 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 141 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-212  Page 8 of 8 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 142 of 179 



 

Director Memorandum 25-213 

Date: November 18, 2025 Task:    140552 

Prepared By:  Charles Thomas, Operations Manager 

Subject: Consideration of an Engineering Contract for the Preparation of Digester 
Cleaning Specifications at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility  

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to issue a contract with 
Woodard & Curan for an amount not to exceed $34,810. 

 
The Wochholz Regional 
Water Recycling Facility 
stabilizes sludge through 
four anaerobic digesters, 
each with a capacity of 
approximately 262,000 
gallons.  Over time, normal 
plant operations result in 
the accumulation of grit 
and inert solids within 
these digesters, which can 
adversely impact digestion 
efficiency and reduce 
system capacity.  Periodic 
cleaning, recommended 
every 7 to 15 years, is 
critical to ensure consistent 
operational performance 
and to allow for 
assessment and maintenance of the digester structures and associated mechanical systems.  
The last comprehensive cleanings were completed in 2005 and 2014 underscoring the ongoing 
need for this essential maintenance activity. 
 
To facilitate this project, Woodard & Curran has submitted a professional engineering services 
proposal to develop a digester cleaning bid package.  Their scope includes preparation of the 
technical specification, identification of plant operational strategies during cleaning, shutdown 
protocols, coordination between District staff and contractors, and clear delineation of acceptable 
disposal methods for removed materials.  The bid package will specify a sequential cleaning 
approach to ensure that only one digester is out of service at any time, to maintain uninterrupted 
plant operations.  Key deliverables include meeting materials, finalized specification documents, 
and detailed terms for contractor milestones and payment.   
 
The budget for professional engineering support as outlined by Woodard & Curran is $34,810, 
which covers project management, specifications, and direct costs.  Historical estimates for 
comprehensive cleaning and assessment, including potential cover replacement and extensive 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 143 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-213  Page 2 of 5 

corrosion repair, range between $350,000 and $550,000 depending on the digester conditions 
encountered during the cleaning project. 
 
District saff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to proceed with the 
preparation of competitive bid documents for the digester cleaning project.  This action will support 
ongoing operational reliability, regulatory compliance, and preservation of District infrastructure 
assets. 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
This contract, not to exceed $34,810, will be paid by the Sewer Fund, R&M Structures [G/L 
Account # 03-502-51003] and the cleaning costs will be included in the 2026-27 budget and may 
be funded by the Sewer Fund, Infrastructure Reserves depending on the total cost [G/L #03-000-
10311].   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 144 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-213  Page 3 of 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 145 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-213  Page 4 of 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 146 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-213  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 147 of 179 



 

Director Memorandum 25-214 

Date:  November 18, 2025 Task: 131532 

Prepared By: Mike Rivera, Public Works Manager 

Subject: Notice of Completion of the Chagall Road Pipeline Project 

Recommendation: That the Board: (1) authorize the General Manager to execute and file 
the Notice of Completion for the pipeline project on Chagall Road, 
Martell Avenue, and Lan Franc Road; and (2) adopt Resolution No. 
2025-72 returning $37,364 to the Infrastructure Reserves fund as a 
result of project savings.   

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District 
owns and operates a drinking 
water distribution system that 
requires continuous 
maintenance and replacement 
of aging infrastructure.  The 
District continues to improve 
infrastructure through pipeline 
replacements to improve service 
reliability, water quality, and fire 
protection.  The new pipeline 
replaces a 12-inch steel and 6-
inch PVC pipeline that was 
prone to main line failures and is 
at the end of its useful life. 
 
The Chagall Road Pipeline 
replacement project included the 
installation of 12-Inch Ductile Iron Pipe (“DIP”) for 1,400 linear feet, 7 water services, and 2 fire 
hydrants.  The increased diameter of the mainline and current design standards has enhanced 
operational performance, reductions in water loss and leak repair costs and improved fire 
protection.   
 
District Staff has recently completed the replacement of the drinking water pipeline.  The Board 
approved a transfer from Infrastructure Reserves on December 17, 2024, which was an estimate 
for the material and paving costs for the project [Director Memorandum 24-190, Resolution 2024-
57].  After reconciling the final project costs, the District completed the project below initial 
estimates, saving a net total of $37,364 which will be returned to the Infrastructure Reserves 
account.  B-81 Paving was the low bid for the RFP paving agreement and a purchase order was 
issued to the vendor on September 11, 2025 and the job has been completed.   
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 148 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-214  Page 2 of 4 

Description Estimate Actual (Over)/Under 

Paving Costs $48,762 $17,000 $31,762 

Materials/Parts $145,458 $139,856 $5,602 

TOTAL $194,220 $156,856 $37,364 

 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
District staff prepared a construction estimate for the pipeline totaling $411,725.00.  The 
requested transfer of reserve funds was for the cost of the paving and materials totaling 
$194,220.00.   As a result of net savings in total costs, $37,364 will be returned to the 
Infrastructure Reserves for future projects and/or the purchase of new vehicles/equipment [G/L 
Account # 02-000-10311]. 
 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 149 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-214  Page 3 of 4 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-72 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
TRANSFERRING FUNDS WITHIN THE WATER FUND AS  

TRANSFER NO. 28 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2026 
 
WHEREAS the Yucaipa Valley Water District recognizes the importance of funding projects and 
programs within the District with funds set aside for this purpose, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has authorized a transfer back to the Infrastructure Reserves 
fund as a result of completing the project under budget resulting in savings.  [Director Memorandum 
25-214]. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE, and ORDER as follows: 

 

Section 1: Fund Transfer No. 28 in the amount of $37,364 to the Water Infrastructure 
Reserves (02-000-10311). 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 18th day of November 2025. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   
  Jay Bogh, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   
Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 150 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-214  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 151 of 179 



 

Director Memorandum 25-215 

Date: September 18, 2025 Task: 123137 

Prepared By: Mia Preciado, Senior Engineering Technician 

Subject: Status Update for the Aquifer Storage and Recovery Phase 1 Project 

Recommendation: Staff presentation, no action required. 

 
The Aquifer Storage and 
Recovery (ASR) Project 
Phase 1 located near 
Roberts Road in the City of 
Calimesa will allow for the 
groundwater basin to be 
recharged with recycled 
water through the use of 
three ASR wells.  During the 
summer months the ASR 
wells can be reversed to 
extract recycled water to 
meet peak demands.  ASR 
Project Phase 2 is a future 
project that will address the 
use of production wells to 
recover the recharged water 
as potable water after the 
appropriate amount of travel 
time has passed in 
compliance with the drinking 
water regulations. 
 
The project was awarded to Layne Christensen Company (Layne) on December 17, 2024 
[Director Memorandum 24-195].  Since this project falls under the WIFIA funding program, there 
are additional requirements that need to be met throughout the duration of design and 
construction of the injection wells.  For this reason, the District is also consulting with Woodard 
and Curran for WIFIA compliance and technical support on the proposed well equipment. 
 
At this time, Layne has completed the pump development efforts for each of the three wells.  Pump 
development consisted of testing each of the three wells at increasing rates to determine the 
extraction capabilities of the wells and how the groundwater surrounding the sites were affected.  
From there, data was collected and provided to Geoscience for further review. 
 
After determining the pumping capabilities of each well, the next step was injection testing.  
Starting at IW-1, a step test and constant rate test were performed to analyze how the well would 
respond to various rates of injection.  The data collected during this test is being reviewed by 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 152 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-215  Page 2 of 5 

Geoscience and will assist the team in determining how to best equip the well for its intended use.  
As of November 7, 2025, injection testing was completed at IW-2.  By the end of this month, we 
will finish injection testing for IW-3 and begin closing out phase 1 of the ASR project. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 153 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-215  Page 3 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 154 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-215  Page 4 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 155 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-215  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 156 of 179 



 

Director Memorandum 25-216 

Date: November 18, 2025 Task: 105317 

Prepared By: Mia Preciado, Senior Engineering Technician 

Subject: Status Update for the Salinity Concentration Reduction and Minimization 
(SCRAM) Project 

Recommendation: Staff presentation, no action required. 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water 
District is in the process of 
completing construction of the 
Salinity Concentration Reduction 
and Minimization (“SCRAM”) 
Project located at the Yucaipa 
Valley Regional Water Filtration 
Facility (“YVRWFF”).  Currently, 
the drinking water filtration facility 
is designed for an ultimate 
capacity of 36 million gallons per 
day (“mgd”) using the latest 
membrane barrier technology for 
the removal of macro, micro and 
molecular constituents that are 
commonly found in surface water 
streams and lakes. 
 
The project was awarded to 
Borden Excavating 
(“Contractor”) on May 21, 2024 
[Director Memorandum 24-087]. 
 
On February 20, 2025, the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to execute 
Contract Change Order No. 1 [Director Memorandum 25-034]. 
 
Borden has been working to install the microfiltration racks, nanofiltration trains and dissolved air 
floation (“DAF”) units for the past couple of months. At this time, deliveries of major material 
components are ongoing but nearing completion. Borden has been on-site continuously for the 
past couple of months working through the final installation efforts as they continue to receive 
equipment and material deliveries. We have also seen progress in the electrical work and the 
data cable wiring for the additional filtration units.  The electrical control components allow for the 
new filtration trains to work with the SCADA equipment and will integrate into the existing process 
equipment. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 157 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-216  Page 2 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 158 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-216  Page 3 of 4 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 159 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-216  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 160 of 179 



 

Director Memorandum 25-217 

Date: November 18, 2025 Task: 87173 

Prepared By: Matthew Porras, Director of Engineering 

Subject: Status Update of the R-16.2 Reservoir and Booster Pumping Project 

Recommendation: Staff presentation, no action required. 

 
The District owns and 
operates the R-16.2 
drinking water storage 
facility [Asset ID: PW-R-
13016.2] that was 
initially put into service 
in the early 1980’s.  The 
R-16.2 drinking water 
storage facility 
consisted of a bolted 
steel tank measuring 38 
feet in diameter and 24 
feet in height with a 
storage capacity of 
200,000 gallons with 
the necessary site 
piping to accommodate 
the distribution of water 
to and from the adjacent 
15 and 17 pressure 
zones.  The 200,000-
gallon tank site did not 
have an electrical 
service or a permanent booster station.  The goal of this project is to replace the 200,000-gallon 
tank, install a permanent booster station, and prepare the site for the future construction of a 
second drinking water reservoir and recycled water reservoir. 
 
The project is located off Oak Glen Road, east of Casa Blanca Avenue in the City of Yucaipa.  
The proposed project includes a 65-foot diameter, 600,000-gallon drinking water tank, an 
electrical service and booster station, a back-up generator, upgraded site piping, site fencing, 
SCADA communication equipment, various valves, fittings and appurtenances to operate and 
maintain the site (“Project”) all within the District’s existing property.   
 
On March 10, 2020, District staff presented the Project to the Board of Directors as a priority 
replacement infrastructure project due to its age and condition [Director Memorandum 20-064].  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 161 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-217  Page 2 of 6 

On March 26, 2020, the Board authorized the design of the Project [Director Memorandum 20-
084]. 
 
On August 25, 2020, the Board of Directors authorized the Board President to execute 
Development Agreement 2020-04 that coordinated the details of the necessary easement with 
the property owner to the south of the Project [Director Memorandum 2020-125]. 
On March 21, 2023, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2023-22, certifying the Final 
Mitigated Negative Declaration for the R-16.2 Reservoir and Booster Pumping Project [Director 
Memorandum 23-048]. 
 
On April 16, 2024, the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to solicit bids for the 
Project.  The bid period was opened May 29, 2024, and closed July 3, 2024 [Director 
Memorandum 24-068].   
 
On July 16, 2024, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contact to R.I.C. Construction 
Co., Inc. (“Contractor”) for a sum not to exceed $5,018,656 [Director Memorandum No. 24-112]. 
 
On November 19, 2024, the Board of Directors authorized Contract Change Order No. 1 (“CCO 
No. 1”).  CCO No. 1 was a no-cost adjustment to the contract but added seven days to the overall 
contract duration [Director Memorandum 24-171].  The adjusted contract duration is 547 
consecutive calendar days and is planned to be completed January 14, 2026.  The initiation of 
the contract change order was in order to adjust the connection point locations of the site piping 
to align with the recently installed off-site pipelines. 
 
On July 1, 2025, the Board of Directors authorized Contract Change Order No. 2 (“CCO No. 2”).  
District staff initiated CCO No. 2 in the effort to find a solution that does not interrupt drinking water 
service and fire-flow to its customers in the heat of summer [Director Memorandum No. 25-143].  
This solution included the contractor installing a “line-stop” and “shear-ring” as an alternative 
method to isolating the 17-zone drinking water distribution system in order to cut into the existing 
12-inch, 17-zone welded steel pipeline.  The traditional isolation method is typically suitable for a 
tie-in for new expansion of an existing pipeline, but in this specific case, and considering the time 
of year, the ability to keep the 17-zone pressurized was advantageous.  District staff evaluated 
the additional cost of CCO No. 2 and found the proposal to be reasonable and effective.   
 
The line-stop and shear-ring worked as planned and allowed the switch-over to take place.  The 
new 600,000-gallon tank was completed and passed all testing protocols.  District staff worked 
with the Division of Drinking Water and the Contractor to bring the newly completed 600,000-
gallon drinking water tank into service on July 23, 2025. 
 

 
Contract 
Changes 

Contract Amount 

Percentage 
Change from 
Original Bid 

Amount 

Reference 

Original Bid Amount -- $5,018,656 - - DM 24-112 

Change Order No. 1 $0 $5,018,656 0% DM 24-171 

Change Order No. 2 $26,034 $5,044,690 0.5% DM 25-143 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 162 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-217  Page 3 of 6 

The Contractor has completed the tubular steel fencing along with the remaining site grading and 
v-ditches.  Other recent site work improvements include the storm water outlet structure and 
piping, concrete curbing, and placement of rock on the slopes.   
 
The booster facility foundation was poured after all pluming and electrical was roughed in to the 
building.  Then the concrete block walls were stacked, and the roof structure was constructed. 
 
After the block building is completed, the interior piping and equipment will be installed.  The 
Contractor is working on securing the long-lead time electrical equipment and service from 
Southern California Edison but will most likely be delayed in completing the site.  District staff are 
currently reviewing options to facilitate expedited electrical equipment and service connections. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 163 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-217  Page 4 of 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 164 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-217  Page 5 of 6 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 165 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-217  Page 6 of 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 166 of 179 



 

Director Memorandum 25-218 

Date: November 18, 2025 Task: 140635 

Prepared By: Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Authorization to Assess and Complete the Rehabilitation of Drinking Water 
Well No. 48 Located on Singleton Road, Calimesa 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to contract with Layne 
for the assessment and rehabilitation of Well No. 48 with the final cost 
and fund transfer to be presented for ratification at a future meeting. 

 
Rehabilitating a groundwater well is vital to ensuring high water quality and dependable operation 
within a drinking water system.  Restoring a well through rehabilitation addresses sediment 
buildup, mineral deposits, and biological growth, which not only recovers lost production but also 
improves hydraulic efficiency.  This process lessens strain on pumping equipment, reduces 
energy use and increases the lifespan of essential well and pump components. 
 

 
 
The District’s Well No. 48 is located on Singleton Road and will be the primary extraction source 
for the three injection wells constructed as part of the ASR Project in Calimesa.  To ensure proper 
operation of this drinking water extraction facility, it is necessary to rehabilitate Well No. 48 to 
maximize its performance and efficiency. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 167 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-218  Page 2 of 4 

Contractor Procurement Process for Well Rehabilitations 
 
Layne’s proposal for the rehabilitation of Well No. 48 begins with a thorough assessment to 
evaluate its current condition and determine required repairs.  Layne was selected due to their 
extensive groundwater well expertise, successful history with the District’s ASR well projects, and 
nearby location, which helps reduce travel costs.  
 
The full scope and budget of rehabilitation will be determined after the initial assessment.  Krieger 
& Stewart and Layne Well Company will jointly interpret the findings and prepare 
recommendations, which District staff will review before approving any repairs in a detailed work 
plan. 
 
Once the repairs and associated costs are approved, District staff will present the rehabilitation 
details to the Board for ratification, including authorization to transfer reserve funds to cover 
expenses. 
 
This process differs from standard procurement procedures that require multiple bids.  Since the 
actual scope of work cannot be defined until after the assessment, requesting bids beforehand 
would not reliably capture the true extent or costs of necessary repairs. 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The cost of this rehabilitation will be paid from the Water Fund, Infrastructure Reserves [G/L 
Account # 02-000-10311] and will be included in a Resolution that will be presented to the Board 
at a future meeting.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 168 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-218  Page 3 of 4 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 169 of 179 



Director Memorandum No. 25-218  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 170 of 179 



 

 

Board Reports and Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 171 of 179 



July 2025 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 

Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

75 full time employees 
 

FY 2025-26 Operating Budget: Water Division - $27,377,636 
 Sewer Division - $15,894,051 
 Recycled Water Division - $2,445,980 
 

Number of Services: 15,613 drinking water connections serving 19,718 units 
15,177 sewer connections serving 22,474 units 
904 recycled water connections serving 1,053 units 

 

Water System: 243 miles of drinking water pipelines 
2,324 fire hydrants 
32 reservoirs - 38 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
3.376 billion gallon annual drinking water demand  
12 MGD - Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 
228 miles of sewer mainlines 
4,846 sewer manholes 
6 sewer lift stations 
1.46 billion gallons of recycled water produced per year 

 

Recycled Water: 44 miles of recycled water pipelines 
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
0.623 billion gallon annual recycled water demand 

 

Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 
1.756 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.595 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 172 of 179 



July 2025 

 
Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 

Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 
 

 
 
Typical Rates, Fees, and Charges: 
 

• Drinking Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons to 15,000 gallons $1.848 per each 1,000 gallons 
16,000 gallons to 60,000 gallons $2.786 per each 1,000 gallons 
61,000 gallons to 100,000 gallons $2.798 per each 1,000 gallons 
101,000 gallons or more $2.969 per each 1,000 gallons 
 

• Recycled Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons or more $1.966 per each 1,000 gallons 

 

• Water Meter Service Charge (Drinking Water or Recycled Water): 
5/8” x 3/4” Water Meter $18.50 per month 
1” Water Meter $30.90 per month 
1-1/2” Water Meter $61.61 per month 

 

• Sewer Collection and Treatment Charge: 
Typical Residential Charge $47.72 per month 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 173 of 179 



July 2025 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

 
San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal 

Water District 

San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency 

Service Area Size 353 square miles 222 square miles 

Table “A” Water Entitlement 102,600 acre feet 17,300 acre feet 

Imported Water Rate $125.80 / acre foot $399 / acre foot 

Tax Rates for FY 2023-24 $0.1200 per $100 $0.1750 per $100 

Number of Board Members Five (5)  Seven (7) 

Operating Budget FY 2024-25 $40,858,510 $20,980,000 
 

Imported Water Charges (Pass-through State Water Project Charge) 

• San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District - Customers in San Bernardino 
County or City of Yucaipa pay a pass-through amount of $0.3054 per 1,000 
gallons. 
 

• San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency - Customers in Riverside County or City of 
Calimesa pay a pass-through amount of $0.9689 per 1,000 gallons.   

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 174 of 179 



July 2025 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the specialized language of the 
group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication difficulties where professionals in related fields use different 
terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated-Sludge Process - A secondary biological wastewater treatment process where bacteria reproduce 
at a high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means of achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) - The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids - Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the wastewater 
treatment process.  This high-quality product can be recycled as a soil amendment on farmland or further 
processed as an earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and 
stimulate plant growth. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) - Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) - The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is a 
California state law that requires state and local agencies to identify, analyze, and mitigate potential 
environmental impacts of proposed projects before approving them.  

Certificate of Participation (COP) – A type of financing where an investor purchases a share of the lease 
revenues of a program rather than the bond being secured by those revenues. 

Coliform Bacteria - A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere used as indicators of sewage pollution.  E. coli is the most common bacteria in 
wastewater. 

Collections System - In wastewater, it is the system of underground pipes that receive and convey sanitary 
wastewater or storm water. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 175 of 179 



July 2025 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Contaminants of Potential Concern (CPC) - Pharmaceuticals, hormones, and other organic wastewater 
contaminants. 

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection by-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce distinct 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts.  Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been 
established have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and 
chlorite. 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Fiscal Year - The twelve-month period beginning on July 1 and ending on June 30. 

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water used by the 
number of people served each day in a water system.  The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles -  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams, and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Levels of Service (LOS) - Goals to support environmental and public expectations for performance. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin.  This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil, or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 176 of 179 



July 2025 

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used later for peak demands or emergencies 
such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or steel 
reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake, to be water 
storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line - A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
(MGD) of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to Orange County Sanitation District 
for treatment, use and/or disposal. 

Secondary treatment - Biological wastewater treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where 
bacteria and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge - Untreated solid material created by the treatment of wastewater. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency with which water is 
applied to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature, and humidity.  

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) - Regional regulatory agency that develops plans 
and regulations designed to achieve public health standards by reducing emissions from business and industry. 

Special district - A form of local government created by a local community to meet a specific need.  Yucaipa 
Valley Water District is a County Water District formed pursuant to Section 30000 of the California Water Code 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps, and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans, or reservoirs behind dams.  In addition to using 
groundwater, Yucaipa Valley Water District receives surface water from the Oak Glen area.  

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) - Pursuant to legislation signed by Governor Jerry Brown 
in 2014, the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act requires water agencies to manage groundwater 
extractions to not cause undesirable results from over production. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling filter - A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in wastewater as it trickles over them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service (https://www.digalert.org) that notifies utilities such as water, 
telephone, cable and sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days 
before you dig).  

Urban runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that carry pollutants into the storm drains, rivers, 
lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs, or controls the flow of water by opening, closing, or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater - Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 177 of 179 

https://www.digalert.org/


July 2025 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water Cycle - The continuous movement of water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again.  

Water Pressure - Water pressure is created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps 
that deliver water to customers.  

Water Service Line - A water service line is used to deliver water from the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
mainline distribution system.  

Water table - the upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water transfer - a transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Watershed - A watershed is the region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a 
specific point on a stream or river.  

Water-Wise House Call - a service which provides a custom evaluation of a customer's indoor and outdoor 
water use and landscape watering requirements.  

Well - a hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground aquifer.  

Wetlands - lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools or 
swamps.  

WIFIA - Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act.  The WIFIA program administered by the 
Environmental Protection Agency accelerates investment in our nation’s water infrastructure by providing long-
term, low-cost supplemental loans for regionally and nationally significant projects. 

 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 178 of 179 



July 2025 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SGMA Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

WIFIA Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - November 18, 2025 - Page 179 of 179 


	Agenda
	Consent Calendar
	General Counsel Report
	Staff Report
	Discussion Items
	DM 25-209 Audited Financial Statements
	DM 25-210 Unaudited Financial Statements
	DM 25-211 VFDs for Lift Station 1
	DM 25-212 Basin Monitoring Task Force
	DM 25-213 Digester Cleaning Specifications
	DM 25-214 NOC Chagall Pipeline Project
	DM 25-215 Status of ASR Project
	DM 25-216 Status of SCRAM Project
	DM 25-217 Status of R-16.2 Reservoir and Booster
	DM 25-218 Rehabilitation of Well 48

	Board Reports and Comments
	Facts About YVWD
	Glossary of Terms
	Abbreviations



